


Table of Contents
May 7, 2025

Agenda Item #IIL.....couininiiiiniiii i e e e e e eaee Approval of Agenda

AgendaTtem #IV...c.viiiiiiiiiiiii e Consent Agenda Approvals

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of April 2, 2025
b. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of April 16, 2025

c. Approval of the Preliminary March 2025 Financials



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11






Consent Agenda Approvals
Agenda Item #IV



a. Approval of the Minutes of

the Regular Session of
April 2, 2025



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, April 2, 2025 at 6:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: David Haley, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Brett Parker,
Secretary; Mary Gonzales, Stevie A. Wakes Sr., and Thomas Groneman.

Also present: Jeremy Ash, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief Counsel;
Andrew Ferris, Chief Financial Officer; Abbey Frye, Chief Administrative Officer; Leigh
Mulholland, Chief Compliance Officer; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Darrin
McNew, Executive Director Electric Operations; Jerin Purtee, Executive Director Electric
Supply; Steve Green, Executive Director Water Operations; Donald Stahl, Executive Director
Electric Production; Brian Laverack, Director of Network Operations; Becky Aldinger,
Director Purchasing/Supply Chain; Gabriela Freeman, Director Customer Care; Amber
Oetting; Director Communications & Marketing; Dennis Dumovich, Director of Human
Resources; Steve Hargis, Supervisor Water Operations; Tyler Addington, Security & Network
Ops Analyst; Andrew Ralph, Information Security Analyst II; and Robert Kamp, IT Project
Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Mr. Haley called the Board meeting to order at 6:00 PM. He welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. He informed all that the meeting was being recorded
including video and audio. He noted a change to the Board meeting structure and read section
1.1 from the Board Rules of Procedure. During the public comments section, community
members who wished to speak to the Board would be asked to provide their name and address.
Members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the raise
hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment
sections. Those attending in person should sign up on the sheet located near the entry and
indicate if they wished to speak with Customer Care regarding their account. Public
comments would be limited to five minutes and should be addressed to the Board. No
confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. He informed all participants to act respectfully
to each other; personal attacks or accusations would not be tolerated. All concerns would be
directed to the Board only, they would then determine staff involvement. If side discussion
was necessary, it was to be conducted outside of the Board room to avoid interfering with

Page 1 of 5



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

presenters or other attendees. If any rules were breached during this meeting, the attendee was
subject to removal.

Mr. Haley introduced himself and the other Board members along with the General Manager,
and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board members were present.

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the amended Agenda, by Mr. Groneman, seconded by
Mr. Wakes, and unanimously carried.

Item #4— Consent Agenda Approvals

A motion was made to approve the amended Consent Agenda of April 2, 2025, by Mr.
Wakes, seconded by Mr. Parker, and unanimously carried.

Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of March 19, 2025
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of March 19, 2025
Approval of the Preliminary February 2025 Financials

Board Member Request to Travel

/e o

Item #5— General Manager / Team Reports

a) Cyber Security Update: Mr. Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer, and Mr. Brian
Laverack, Director of Network Operations, presented a cyber security update to the
Board. Topics included, security vulnerabilities and measures the BPU security team
was taking to prevent attacks. Mr. Laverack introduced two members of the security
team, Mr. Tyler Addington, Security & Network Ops Analyst, and Mr. Andrew Ralph,
Information Security Analyst II. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Laverack responded to questions and comments from the Board.
b) Executive Session — Consultation w/ Counsel:

Ms. Angela Lawson, Acting Chief Counsel, proposed a motion for adoption as
followed:

Page 2 of §



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

“I move that the Board go into Executive Session in the first floor conference room
until 7:15 PM to consult with our attorneys and to discuss, under the attorney — client
privilege, confidential matters related to potential claims and /or liability, as permitted
under the Kansas Open Meetings Act; and that the General Manager, Jeremy Ash, our
attorney, Angela J Lawson, outside counsel, Brittany Barrientos, and staff members,
Leigh Mulholland, Becky Aldinger, and Andrew Ferris be present to participate in the
discussion, and that we reconvene in Open Session at 7:15 PM in the board room.”

Mr. Groneman asked if the Board wished to allow Public Comments to be
made prior to the Executive Session. The Board agreed, but there were no visitors
wishing to speak.

A motion was made to move into Executive Session, by Mr. Parker, seconded
by Mr. Wakes, and unanimously carried.

At 7:15 PM the meeting returned to Open Session.

A motion was made to extend the Executive Session an additional 20 minutes,
to return to Open Session at 7:35 PM, and to allow Mr. Jerin Purtee to participate, by
Mr. Haley, seconded by Mr. Parker, and unanimously carried.

At 7:36 PM the meeting returned to Open Session.

Resolution # 5312: Mr. Ash gave a recap of the Request for Proposal (RFP) process for
the Quindaro Power Plant and presented Resolution # 5312 which would approve the
option purchase agreement. (See attached resolution and exhibit A.)

Ms. Lawson clarified that the resolution would request the Unified Government (UG)
to enter into the sales agreement on behalf of BPU in compliance with Charter
Ordinance 5-0. ‘

A motion was made to approve Resolution # 5312, by Mr. Wakes, seconded by Mr.
Parker, and unanimously carried.

Item #6— Public Comments

There were not visitors wishing to speak.

Page 3 of 5§



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2025
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #7— Miscellaneous Comments

Mr. Ash announced that Mr. Jerin Purtee was named Interim Chief Operating Officer.

Mr. Purtee said he looked forward to transitioning into his new role and to continue to
provide safe, reliable, and cost-effective service to the community.

Prior to Board comments, Mr. Haley verified that the Board was aware of his request for
travel to attend the APPA National Conference June 8 — 12%, It was included in the consent

agenda and approved earlier in the meeting.

Item #8— Board Comments

Ms. Mulvany Henry congratulated Mr. Purtee on his new role and gave kudos to Mr.
Sullivan and the BPU cyber security team. She spoke about the resolution that had passed and
its benefit to the community, and thanked BPU staff for their efforts.

Ms. Gonzales thanked Mr. Sullivan, Mr. Laverack, and their team for the presentation
and the work they do.

Mr. Parker echoed thanks to Mr. Sullivan and the security team for their presentation,
congratulated Mr. Purtee on his new role, and thanked BPU staff for their work on the
Quindaro site sales agreement.

Mr. Wakes said he was impressed with the BPU staff and their efforts utility wide and
said he was proud to be a Board member for an organization that was doing great things for
the community.

Mr. Groneman echoed previous comments and thanked Mr. Sullivan and his team for
their security efforts, congratulated Mr. Purtee on his new role, and thanked crews that were
out working through the overnight storms.

Mr. Haley also echoed previous comments and expressed thanks for the security

presentation and their teams hard work, congratulated Mr. Purtee on his new role, and said he
was grateful to see Resolution #5312, regarding the Quindaro Plant, pass.

Page 4 of 5



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2, 2025
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item 9 — Adjourn

At 7:59 PM a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Parker, seconded by Mr. Wakes, and
unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 5 of §



Ransas City Board Member

; %@@?é of Public %éisgazagg Request to Travel
546 fitinncsots Avenve . Haarar Gity, HE 5816
Phoae: 913-575-9000 . weww.bpu.com

Memorandum

To: BFU Genera! Manager and Board of Directors
From: TSV e {f‘r—_,;{a\/ - Vie Ehene

Date: e D 2

Subject: Request {o Travel

At this ime | respectfully request parmission in accordance with the BPU Board Member Traval Palicy,
No 02-100-001. to travel for the following purpose:

Aren Watime! Conllarence

Mame of Conference or Trave! Purpose

June §% 2025 lune 2™, 2025
Begin Date ‘Refur Date
. o\
M ew Ly Lﬁwﬁg LA
City State

I hereby ask that this request be placed on the Board Agenda for vote by the Board of Diectors at the
following Board Meeling

Board Meeting Datle













































RESOLUTION NO. 5312

RESOLUTION BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF UTILITIES, AN
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/ KANSAS CITY, KANSAS REQUESTING THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF
WYANDOTTE COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS TO APPROVE THE ATTACHED
OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE QUINDARO PLANT SITE

WHEREAS, as an administrative agency of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/ Kansas City, Kansas and pursuant to Charter Ordinance 5-0, the Kansas City Board of
Public Utilities (the “BPU) has the authority to acquire property but not the authority to sell said
real property; and

WHEREAS, the land commonly referred to as the Quindaro Plant Site, is owned by the
Unified Government and under operational oversight of the BPU; and

WHEREAS, the Quindaro Plant site previously contained plants that provided power
and water to the community, however said plants are no longer in use; and

WHEREAS, certain facilities on the site are still in use and those areas should be
retained by the Unified Government/ BPU, however the other areas are no longer needed for
utility use; and

WHEREAS, the BPU issued a Request for Proposals for the property and conducted a
competitive process to determine the successful bidder who would remediate and purchase or
lease the property; and

WHEREAS, Power-Transitions Operations LLC (Developer), was determined to have
the best proposal; and

WHEREAS, BPU staff and Developer entered into negotiations; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Option Purchase Agreement attached as Exhibit A, addresses
the environmental needs of the property, proposes a redevelopment plan for the property, and
clarifies the areas of the property that will be transferred; and

WHEREAS, the elected Board of the BPU requests that the Unified Government
approve the Option Purchase Agreement with Power-Transitions Operations LLC, or its
subsidiary or affiliate, in substantially the same form as attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES:

That the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities hereby requests that the Unified
Government Board of Commissioners approve the Option Purchase Agreement with Power-



Transitions Operations LLC, or its subsidiary or affiliate, attached as Exhibit A, in substantially
the same form as attached hereto.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF
PUBLIC UTILITIES THIS 2nd DAY OF APRIL, 2025.

By:

David Haley, Board President

Attest:

Brett Parker, Board Secretary

Approved as to form









Final Draft 4.2.25

[PROPOSED] OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT

By and Between

Unified Government of Wyandotte County/ Kansas City, Kansas

as “Owner”

and

[PowerTransitions Operations LLC!],
a Delaware limited liability company

as “Developer”

Dated May [e], 2025

! PowerTransitions Operations LLC responded to the Request for Proposal.

0504745 0031/195929195 12



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Option Grant/Diligence Period/Tax and Payment Information ... 2
1.1 OPLON GIAN ..o et rae et saeae s ntes e eas s eae e raers rrraeeeeen 2
1.2 Diligence Period and Payment. ... e s e 2
1.3 Tax and Payment Information ..........c..cooceivineenns e teeat e et e eb e e et e aenaee e 3
2. Option Term/Option Payments/Option EXErcise.....coooeiverrcnnencinceninconnscrieons 3
2.1 Option Term....ccoominmccrmcniiinn. R JE OO O UV 3
2.2 Option PaYMERTS.......oooirmreeieiieire e et et easeses s sassaes
2.3 Exercise of Option .....ccocvveenn et et et ottt et et 4
2.4 Lapse or Termination of Option ........c.cocorvrveireirinnnes ettt en e e 5
3. Preliminary Studies, Grant of LICeNSE ... e e e 5
3.1  Preliminary Studies/Grant of License...........cccooomein, RSP e .5
3.2 Review Materials ..o 6
3.3 Cooperation re Entitlements & Health and Safety..........cooovcioriicn O 6
34 Title Matters.......ccooc... O ST SO USROS TSSOSO ceereerres T
3.5  Planned Project Layout............o.co. et b et R et er e e en et r e r e s 8
3.6 Insurance......c..ocviennenene JSRUUPIUOPIIUTOPOIN it e heeette b ae s aerEs s anesbae s a e e e 11
37 [ndemnities......ocoooeveireireie e b eetse eyt et ey e ene e ereseabe it ran e e b eeas 1
3.8  Owner’s Use of the Pmpertw S SO SUURURSUU eeerrers e enees e 12
39 Payment Address .. SO UU DRSO UUPEUOOTPNPUVUUVRUIRRURTOTRS X
3.10  Environmental S:te Asscssmmts ...... vevererernnnne 13
4, Purchase Price.....ooceeciiicnininnnnccenn. et beseeteemehen e be b e eetaA b ehsh e Rr s e n bk bne ke et et e et e enns 14
5. Easements e e s RSO ettt et s e e 15
5.1 Grant OF EGSEIMENTS ....oooiiiiiiiieoeietiieeiiesevese e e essanass s ssras st sessetserseasraennesisnssns 9
5.2 Owner Easements .......... e s tmnearbesAetesssehtieeiatbaatenisbusteessae s e b taaee b s saeee by enhneers 16
5.3  Agreements for Easements and Owner Easements............... ereere e e 16
6. Conditions Precedent ......o.ooviiiviccicnn. ettt b et e s e oes e 16
6.1 Developer’s Conditions ......cc.ocinineenne et heaekeeesaiir et bt ar e s e et e e erneneae 16
6.2 Owner’s Conditions ............ ORI e eehaeeshneteseeshsenstses et rotanetias irsasts bk eenenbnntean 17
6.3  Compliance with Subdivision Laws ... 17
6.4  Failure of Conditions.........c..oeveveens vt et et Crerreenne i 17
7. Closing........... ceereceene . e eteetteettiesbeiieeastsrireeasieesiseesseseeriseeenesessesseeeaenireeinsennenrnesern 18
7.1 Purchase and Sale of Project Property ..o sttt et enn e tenin 18
T2 TIMEC e rreerereaaas rerreeas crveereerireineaenene 1B
7.3 Owner's Delivenies ....ooovvvviniiceneene, terettea e eera e e rrnres e e 18

7.4 Developer’s Deliveries
7.5 Closing . coceevevreireircreiare A
7.6 Closing (‘Gsts and Pmratmns ............................................................................... 20

050 743.0034/1956925195.12



7.7 P OEEEESIOT 1ot crree ettt ettt ettt an e e etr ittt e 20

8. Devcloper's Representations, Warranties and Covenants ... 20
8.1  Developer's Authority ... OSSOSO USROS CUSPUPSORPSO 20
8.2  Compliance with Law ... e SUSSURSROURURTRPOTN 20
9. Owner's Representations, Warranties and COVENAINTS ..c....veervieienecev e ree e 20
9.1 Owner's AUthority ..o ettt 20
9.2 Other Representations, Warraniies & Covenants ..., 20
9.3 KNOWIEAZE coovieeicc e e e 22
9.4  Survival; De Minimis Claims: Limitation of Liability .......cccovnniinn v 23
9.5 OWNER DISCLAIMER Lo e 20
FOL ASSIGIMENE e OSSO SUUS TN 24
1. Cooperation with Financing EITOrts ..o 25
12, Default oo RSSO PRI TOTUOTPRTOIRN 25
12,1 Event of Default. s e 25
122 Remedies....ooooineiiiiiie et h e ettt ettt s et 26
T3, Damages WalVET ..ot s 26
T NDLICE ottt ettt e ettt e b ek E e e et r oo eaen e 26
14,1 NOHCES oo RSSO e et et 2
T2 DBIIVEIY ottt ettt sttt s 27
143 Change of Recipient or Address ..., 28
15. GOVEITHDE LAW oot eb et ettt b e s e 28
16, Further ASSUTANCRS «oovieiieen e e e s eme s et e 28
17 Amendments ..o, OO TP TSR USPTO PPN 28
18. SeverabIliTy oo et e et araean 28
19, Titles, Captions o Headlt@s. ..ottt ess st e e s eane s esaeens 28
20, ENHIC APIPOIMIEIT.coiiiiiiiiiertieecs et st et see e et ree st es e seinent b eane e eaaenbes 28
21, EfFect Of TEMMIIALON ..o otiee it set st eks e e aen et es e e 29
22. INO WRIVEL .ot e e et 29

24, Recording of Memorandum; Subdivision of Property .......cccoooovveiiceine et 29

24.1  Recording of Memorandum. ..o 29

242 SubdiviSion Of PrOPEILY ..o e 30

25, INO PATEIEISHI cooovee oottt et s e st ca s ceaa e cen e e ess e e ceerenn 30

26. Brokerage Commissions . ..o iorrioirev oo e s TR 30

27, Comfidenmtiality .o e e 30
i

0504745 0031/195929195.12



28. Successors and ASSIENS ..o nssrn e snes e S0
29.  Force Majeure......cooo..e. v 31
30. TIEIPIEIALION .ot veesti ettt ieec e et n e srs s es s et e e e e e sb e s et as s as s nreane e s 3l
31. NO METger. oot e SO PP USSPV P PP U OO OTPRO PO RVOPTION 31
320 Time is 0f the ESSENCE oot e e U

Exhibit A - Description of the Property

Exhibit A-[ ~ Map of the Property

Exhibit A-2 — Description of the Quindaro Site
Exhibit A-3 — Map of the Quindaro Site

Exhibit B~  Form of Memorandum of Agreement
Exhibit C -  Form of Notice of Exercise

Exhibit D -  Excluded Assets

Exhibit E - Proposed Redevelopment Plan

iii
0504745.0031/195929195.12






E. WHEREAS, Owner and Developer desire to explore the development and
construction of Renewable Assets in the form of Renewable Assets on the Property (the “Proposed
Energy Projects”) or mixed-use commercial or recreational facilities, including data centers on
the Property (together with the Proposed Energy Project, the “Redevelopment Projects”);

F. WHEREAS, Owner and Developer desire to explore the management of the
demolition of the Quindaro Power Station and environmental liabilities associated with the
Quindaro Power Station, including, without limitation, abatement, cleanup, remediation,
restoration and ongoing monitoring (the “Quindaro Power Station Demolition &
Remediation”) by Developer in a manner such that the Quindaro Power Station Demolition &
Remediation can be performed in connection with the development and construction of the
Redevelopment Projects; and

G. WHEREAS, in furtherance thereof, Developer seeks from Owner, and Owner is
willing to grant to Developer, an exclusive and irrevocable option and right to purchase the
Property and certain related easement rights on the Quindaro Site, all upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement.

H. NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals (which are incorporated
into this Agreement by this reference) and promises and for other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Owner and Developer agree as
follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Option Grant/Diligence Period/Tax and Payment Information.

1.1 Option Grant. For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged by Owner, Owner hereby grants to Developer effective as of the
Effective Date an exclusive and irrevocable option (the “Option™), which may be exercised at any
time during the Option Term (as defined in Section 2 below), to purchase the Property and certain
related easement rights on the Quindaro Site, subject to all necessary governmental approvals, all
on the terms and conditions set forth herein.

1.2 Diligence Period and Payment. Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing
until the date that is the later of (i) sixty (60) days after the Effective Date and (ii) five (5) business
days following (x) completion of any survey contemplated by Section 25.1, (y) the recording of
the Memorandum by the Parties and (z) completion of the Phase II ESA (provided that Developer
within five (5) days of the Effective Date orders the Phase I1 ESA and thereafter diligently pursues
the same to completion) (the “Diligence Period”), Owner grants Developer a license to enter upon
the Quindaro Site, subject to site security and safety requirements as set forth in the Owner EHS
Policy (or otherwise communicated to Developer in writing) and in a manner that does not interfere
with Owner’s maintenance, operations and other work at the Quindaro Site, to conduct preliminary
assessment of the Property and certain easement corridors on the Quindaro Site for the purposes
of development, construction and operation of the Redevelopment Project (or portions thereof),
and Developer shall pay to Owner the amount of One Hundred and No/100 Dollars ($100.00) (the
“Diligence Period Payment”) in connection with the execution of this Agreement within thirty

0504745.0031/195929195.12



























(e) After considering any BPU comments and concemns provided to
Developer during the Final Owner Comment Period together with all of the other relevant factors
that need to be considered in finalizing the layout of the contemplated Redevelopment Project and
related easement areas and further advancing Developer’s final layout, engineering and design for
the planned Redevelopment Project, and after making such revisions as reasonably required by
BPU, when Developer has finalized its project layout Developer shall prepare and deliver the final
project layout map (“Final Project Layout Map™) to BPU and Owner depicting the final layout
of the Redevelopment Project, the Owner Easements and the Easements.

3.6 Insurance.

(a) Developer. Developer (or one of its affiliates) shall, at its expense,
maintain a commercial general liability insurance policy insuring against loss or liability caused
by Developer’s activities on the Property under the Agreement during the Diligence Period and
the Option Term, in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and
Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) in the general aggregate, as well as excess liability coverage of
not less than Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000), which has a commercially reasonable deductible.
Certificates of such insurance shall be provided to Owner upon written request of Owner. Owner
shall be named as an additional insured under Developer’s commercial general liability insurance
policy.

(b) Owner. During the Diligence Period and Option Term, Owner shall
maintain at least substantially the same insurance coverages Owner has in effect for the Property
as of the Effective Date, and any additional coverages Owner may elect in its sole and absolute
discretion. Developer shall be named as an additional insured under Owner’s commercial general
liability and property insurance policies.

3.7  Indemnities. Without limiting the provisions of Section 8.3 and Section 9.2(d) and
subject to the provisions thereof:

(a) Developer will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Owner and its
affiliates and its and their employees, officers, directors, equityholders, agents, lessees,
contractors, subcontractors and other representatives (each an “Owner Related Party”, and
collectively, “Owner Related Parties”) against any and all claims for losses, damages, claims,
expenses and other liabilities (“Losses”), in each case to the extent resulting from or arising out of
(1) physical damage to property located on the Quindaro Site during the term of this Agreement or
(1) physical injury, death or disability to any person on the Quindaro Site during the term of this
Agreement, but in each case only to the extent caused by Developer or a Developer Related Party
and except to the extent caused (in whole or in part) by the negligence or willful misconduct of
Owner or any Owner Related Party. The foregoing indemnification obligations shall survive the
termination of this Agreement (but only with respect to claims arising during the term of this
Agreement).

(b) Owner will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Developer and its
affiliates and its and their employees, officers, directors, equityholders, agents, lessees,
contractors, subcontractors and other representatives (each a “Developer Related Party”, and
collectively, “Developer Related Parties™) against any and all Losses, in each case to the extent

11
0504745.0031/195929195 12















shall be completed at Developer’s sole expense, and (ii) Developer will install separate meters if
Developer connects to any of Owner’s electric, water or gas utilities facilities, and (iii) Developer
shall reimburse Owner for the amount owed to any such utilities for any such utilities services used
by Developer within thirty (30) days of an invoice from Owner reasonably documenting the
amount owed to the utilities for such services. For the avoidance of doubt, Developer’s
nonexclusive easement rights under this paragraph and rights to connect Developer’s Utilities and
Drainage Facilities to Owner’s existing utilities and draining facilities shall each be subject to
meeting applicable law, rules or regulations, including meeting all applicable codes;

(d) nonexclusive easement rights for Developer and its employees,
contractors, subcontractors, and agents to use the Temporary Construction Laydown Easement
Areas for the period starting on the Closing Date until six (6) months after the date on which
construction of the Redevelopment Project is completed (the “TCL Easement Expiration Date’),
for the purpose of parking, office trailers, communications equipment, security cameras, sanitary
facilities (porta potties), shade structures, benches, temporary storage of equipment and supplies,
assembly, and other related construction logistics purposes, including the right to lay down
temporary gravel, rock and other ground treatment necessary for all-weather use, and the right to
keep the Temporary Construction Laydown Easement Areas clear of all brush, trees, timber and/or
additional structures, improvements and facilities or other hazards that in Developer’s reasonable
opinion could interfere with the exercise of the rights granted hereunder (a “Temporary
Construction Laydown Easement™); and

(e) nonexclusive easement rights for Developer and its employees,
contractors, subcontractors, and agents to use or hold the Habitat Conservation Areas (a “Habitat
Conservation Easement”).

5.2  Owner Easements. Developer shall grant and deliver at Closing to Owner the
Owner Easements included in the Final Project Layout Map.

53 Agreements for Easements and Owner Easements. Following the completion of the
Survey and during the Option Period, Developer and BPU, as agent of Owner, agree to negotiate
in good faith the easement agreements for all applicable Easements and Owner Easements
hereunder, all of which shall be initially drafted by BPU, as agent of Owner, based on Owner’s
standard forms.

6. Conditions Precedent.

6.1 Developer’s Conditions. Developer’s obligation to complete the Closing of the
conveyance of the applicable Project Property after delivery of a Notice of Exercise is subject to
the following conditions:

6.1.1 Title Policy. The title company selected by Developer, which shall be an
industry recognized title company reasonably acceptable to Owner (“Title Company™), shall be
irrevocably committed to issue to Developer an owner’s policy of title insurance for the Project
Property subject to the Permitted Exceptions and including such endorsements as may be
reasonably requested by Developer (“Title Policy™).

16
0504745.0031/195929195 12



6.1.2 Covenants. Owner having performed in all material respects Owner’s
obligations under this Agreement.

6.1.3 Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of
Owner set forth in Section 8 being true and accurate in all material respects on the Closing Date,
as if made on such date.

6.1.4 No Material Adverse Change. There shall have been no material adverse
change in the condition of the Project Property between the date the Notice of Exercise is sent and
the Closing Date.

6.2 Owner’s Conditions. Owner’s obligation under this Agreement to complete the
Closing of the conveyance of the applicable Project Property after Developer’s delivery of a Notice
of Exercise is subject to the following conditions:

6.2.1 Covenants. Developer having performed in all material respects
Developer’s obligations under this Agreement.

6.2.1 Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of
Developer set forth in this Agreement being true and accurate in all material respects on the
Closing Date, as if made on such date.

6.2.2 Option Exercise. Developer having properly and timely exercised the
Option with respect to the Property and any applicable Easements as required under this
Agreement.

6.2.3 Turnkey Remediation Agreement. The Tumkey Remediation Agreement
has been entered into by BPU, as agent for Owner, and Developer.

6.2.4 Easements and Owner Easements. The easement agreements for all
applicable Easements and Owner Easements hereunder shall have been fully negotiated and
approved by Developer and BPU, as agent of Owner.

6.3 Compliance with Subdivision Laws. Developer’s and Owner’s respective
obligation to complete the Closing contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the
condition precedent (which is for the benefit of both parties and is not waivable by either party)
that the Property must be sold on the scheduled Closing Date in compliance with all applicable
subdivision laws and ordinances.

6.4 Failure of Conditions. If any of the conditions set forth in this Section 6 are not
timely satisfied or waived by the applicable party which is the beneficiary of the condition(s), then
the obligation of Developer or Owner, as applicable, to complete the Closing of the Project
Property hereunder shall terminate, and upon the election of such Party this Agreement may be
terminated upon notice to the other Party, in which event the Parties hereto shall have no further
rights or obligations hereunder whatsoever except for such rights or obligations that, by the express
terms hereof, survive any termination of this Agreement.

0504745.0031/195529195.12



7. Closing.

7.1 Purchase and Sale of Project Property.

(a) Purchase and Sale of Project Property. In the event Developer
exercises the Option, then subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including Section
7.1(c), on the designated Closing Date for the applicable Project Property, (i) Developer shall
purchase the Project Property in exchange for the Purchase Price for the Project Property, (ii)
Owner shall transfer and convey ownership of the Property subject to the Permitted Exceptions,
(iii) Owner shall grant to Developer the Easements, and (iv) Developer shall grant to Owner the
Owner Easements.

(b)  Turnkey Remediation Agreement. Following the Effective Date,
BPU, as agent of Owner, and Developer will use commercially reasonable efforts to explore in
good faith potential options and solutions for the Quindaro Power Station Demolition &
Remediation, including the proposed redevelopment plan set forth on Exhibit E hereto (the
“Proposed Redevelopment Plan”). In the event BPU and Developer are able to agree on terms
with respect to the Quindaro Power Station Demolition & Remediation, including with respect to
responsibility, costs and timing therefor, BPU and Developer will negotiate in good faith a
definitive agreement with respect thereto (a “Turnkey Remediation Agreement”), which
definitive agreement would be entered into by Owner and Developer. For the avoidance of doubt,
this Section 7.1(b) shall not require Owner or Developer to enter into a Turnkey Remediation
Agreement, and Developer and its affiliates will not have any obligations with respect to the
Quindaro Power Station Demolition & Remediation unless expressly agreed to in a Turnkey
Remediation Agreement. The Parties intend that the Turnkey Remediation Agreement will reflect
the Proposed Redevelopment Plan, with such adjustments as needed following completion of
Developer’s diligence and studies.

(c) Condition to Exercise of Option. Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, Developer may not exercise the Option or deliver a Notice of Exercise
to Owner unless and until the Turnkey Remediation Agreement has been entered into by Owner
and Developer.

7.2  Time. The closing of the purchase and sale of any applicable Project Property
pursuant to this Agreement (“Closing”), shall occur on the closing date designated in the
applicable Notice of Exercise, or on such other closing date as is mutually agreed between the
parties in writing (“Closing Date”).

7.3  Owner’s Deliveries. Owner shall deliver the following to the Title Company at
Closing:

(a) A (1) duly executed and acknowledged special warranty deed
(“Deed”) conveying good and valid fee title to the Property, subject to the Permitted Exceptions
(which form of Deed shall be agreed to and attached as an exhibit to the Turnkey Remediation
Agreement), (ii) duly executed and acknowledged easement agreements conveying the Easements
to Developer, and (iii) duly executed and acknowledged easement agreements accepting the
conveyance of the Owner Easements from Developer;

18
0504745.0031/195929195.12









(d) Deliver to Developer (i) conformed copies (showing all recording
information thereon) of the Deed; and (ii) the Non-Foreign Certificate.

7.6  Closing Costs and Prorations. Developer shall pay all transfer taxes at Closing and
Developer shall pay all escrow costs. Developer shall pay any title premium in connection with
the issuance of the Title Policy obtained by Developer. All other closing costs or fees relating to
the Closing shall be paid by the parties in accordance with the local custom in the county in which
the Project Property is located. Property taxes and assessments on the Project Property shall be
prorated between Developer and Owner (if applicable) as of the Closing, based on the most current
statements and information available at such time. If the Project Property is part of a larger
assessor’s parcel, then the property taxes and assessments allocable to the Project Property shall
be determined on a pro rata basis based on acreage. Owner shall be solely responsible for, and
shall promptly pay, all supplemental, escape and other taxes and assessments made or levied
against the Project Property to the extent they apply to any period prior to the Closing.

7.7 Possession. Owner shall deliver the Project Property to Developer free and clear
of any liens, encumbrances, mortgages, estoppels, leases, option leases or other exception to title,
and parties in possession on the applicable Closing Date therefor. Prior to the Closing, Owner
shall remove, at its own expense, the Excluded Assets from the Project Property.

8. Developer’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants. Developer hereby represents,
warrants and covenants to Owner as follows as of the Effective Date:

8.1 Developer’s Authority. Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of
Developer is authorized or will be authorized to do so. When signed, this Agreement constitutes
a valid and binding agreement enforceable against Developer in accordance with its terms. No
consent or other approval, authorization or action by, or filing with, any person is required to be
made or obtained by Developer for Developer’s lawful execution, delivery and performance of
this Agreement.

8.2  Compliance with Law. Developer shall conduct its activities on the Quindaro Site
in a lawful manner and obtain any necessary permits and government approvals pertaining to its
activities on the Quindaro Site.

9, Owner’s Representations, Warranties and Covenants.

9.1 Owner’s Authority. Owner hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Developer
as follows as of the Effective Date and the Closing Date, all of which representations and
warranties are true and correct as of the Effective Date and shall be true and correct on the Closing
Date: Owner has or will have the unrestricted right and authority to execute this Agreement and to
grant to Developer the rights granted hereunder; each person signing this Agreement on behalf of
Owner is authorized or will be authorized to do so; when signed, this Agreement constitutes a valid
and binding agreement enforceable against Owner in accordance with its terms, and no consent or
other approval, authorization or action by, or filing with, any person is required to be made or
obtained by Owner for Owner’s lawful execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.

9.2  Other Representations, Warranties & Covenants. Except as set forth on Schedule
9.2, Owner hereby represents, warrants and covenants to Developer as follows as of the Effective

20
0504745 0031/195929195.12


















12.2 Remedies. Any prohibited conduct under this Agreement may be enjoined and this
Agreement shall be specifically enforceable. Upon an Event of Default by a defaulting Party under
this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon
notice to the other Party, and the non-defaulting Party shall further be entitled to exercise any and
all remedies available to it at law or in equity, all of which remedies shall be cumulative. The terms
of this Section shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

13. Damages Waiver. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY IN THIS
AGREEMENT, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE ENTITLED TO, AND EACH OF OWNER AND DEVELOPER
HEREBY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS TO RECOVER, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL,
AND PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, HOWEVER ARISING, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, IN TORT,
OR OTHERWISE, UNDER OR WITH RESPECT TO ANY ACTION TAKEN IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT.

14, Notice.

14.1 Notices. All notices, payments, and other communications to the Parties under this
Agreement must be in writing and be delivered to the address below by (a) certified or registered
mail (return receipt requested), (b) personal delivery, (c) nationally recognized courier service
which provides written evidence of delivery, or (d) email, or to such other addresses as the Parties
may, by such notice, specify from time to time; provided, however, that notice sent by email shall
be accompanied by notice sent by one of the methods described in clauses (a), (b), or (c) above
and shall be deemed delivered upon delivery of the physical notice sent by such other method:

0304745.0031/195929195.12



If to Owner: Kansas City Board of Public Utilities
Attention: General Manager

540 Minnesota Avenue
Kansas City, Kansas 66101

with copies to (which shall not constitute notice):

Kansas City Board of Public Utilities
Attention: Chief Compliance Officer
540 Minnesota Avenue

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

and

Unified Government

Attention: Chief Counsel

Legal Department, Municipal Office Building 9"
Floor

701 N. 7% Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

and

Unified Government

Attention: County Administrator
701 N. 7' Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

and

Stinson LLP

c¢/o Brittany Barrientos

1201 Walnut, Ste. 2901

Kansas City, MO 64106

Email: brittany.barrientos(gistinson.com

If to Developer: [PowerTransitions Operations LLC]
5251 Westheimer Rd., Suite 330
Houston, TX 77056
Attn: Justin Thekkekara,
Managing Director, General Counsel
Email: legal.noticei@ power-transitions.com

14.2  Delivery. Notice is considered given either (a) when delivered in person to the
address set forth in this Section 14, (b) when delivered to the applicable Party’s address specified
in this Section 14 by nationally recognized courier service which certifies in writing the date of

27
0504745 0031/195929195.12



delivery, (c) three (3) business days after deposit in the United States mail sent by certified or
registered mail (return receipt requested), in a sealed envelope or container, postage and postal
charges prepaid, addressed to the applicable Party’s address specified in this Section 14; or (d)
upon transmission by email to the applicable Party’s email address specified in this Section 14, or
to such other addresses as the Parties may, by such notice, specify from time to time.

14.3 Change of Recipient or Address. Either Party may, by notice given at any time or
from time to time, require subsequent notices to be given to another individual person, whether a
Party or an officer or representative, or to a different address, or both. Notices given before actual
receipt of notice of change shall not be invalidated by the change.

15.  Governing Law. This Agreement and any disputes arising out of this Agreement shall be
governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Kansas, without regard to principles of
conflicts of law. Venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be the United
States District Court for the District of Kansas and any state courts sitting in Wyandotte County,
Kansas.

16.  Further Assurances. The Parties hereto shall at all times hereafter execute any documents
and do any further acts which may be necessary or desirable or reasonably requested by the other
Party to carry out the purposes of this Agreement and to give full force and effect to each and all
of the provisions thereof.

17. Amendments. This Agreement shall not be amended or modified in any way except by an
instrument duly signed by Owner and Developer.

18. Severability. If any term, phrase, paragraph or provision of this Agreement, or the
application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall be held to be invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining terms, phrases, paragraphs
or provisions shall in no way be affected or impaired thereby, and such remaining terms, phrases,
paragraphs or provisions shall remain in full force and effect. The invalid, illegal or unenforceable
term, phrase, paragraph or provision, as applicable, shall be replaced by a term, phrase, paragraph
or provision which being valid, legal and enforceable, comes closest to the intention of the Parties
expressed in this Agreement underlying the invalid, illegal or unenforceable term, phrase,
paragraph or provision.

19.  Titles, Captions or Headings. The titles, captions or headings of the various articles,
sections, paragraphs and subparagraphs contained in this Agreement are intended for convenience
and for reference purposes only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of this
Agreement or in any way affect this Agreement.

20.  Entire Agreement. All exhibits and schedules attached and referred to in this Agreement
are hereby incorporated herein as if fully set forth in (and shall be deemed to be a part of) this
Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire and final understanding of the Parties and
supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and understandings between the Parties related to the
subject matter of this Agreement.

0504745 0031/195929195.12












{Signature Page Follows]

0504745.0031/195929195.12



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Developer have caused this Agreement to be executed
and delivered by their duly authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

OWNER:
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/ Kansas City, Kansas

By

Name:

Title:

DEVELOPER:

[PowerTransitions Operations LLC],
a Delaware limited liability company

By

Name:

Title:

0504745 0031/195529195 12



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

[To be finalized following Diligence Period per Survey]

Exhibit A
0504745 0031/195929195 12






EXHIBIT A-2

DESCRIPTION OF THE QUINDARO SITE

[To be finalized following Diligence Period per Survey]

Exhibit A -2
0504745 0031/193929195.12









Exhibit B

FORM OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED, RETURN TO:

[PowerTransitions Operations LLC]
5251 Westheimer Rd., Suite 330
Houston, TX 77056

Attn: Justin Thekkekara,

Managing Director, General Counsel

APN:

Space above line for Recorder’s use only

This Memorandum of Option Purchase Agreement (“Memorandum™) is made and dated
as of , 20 (“Effective Date™) by and among the Unified Government
of Kansas City/Wyandotte County, Kansas (“Owner”), with an address of 701 N. 7 Street,
Kansas City, KS 66101, and {[PowerTransitions Operations LLC], a Delaware limited liability
company (“Developer”), with an address of 5251 Westheimer Rd, Suite 330, Houston, Texas,
77056, in light of the following facts and circumstances:

A. Owner owns the approximately eighty-five (85) acres of real property. including all right,
title and interest in any rights, hereditaments and benefits appurtenant thereto including, any
easements and rights-of-way benefiting such real property, and all surface rights pertaining thereto,
but excluding any improvement thereon, more particularly described on the attached Exhibit A-2
(the “Quindaro Site) and depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A-3. Owner and
Developer entered into that certain Option Purchase Agreement, dated May [e], 2025 (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which Owner has granted Developer an exclusive option to purchase
(the “Option™) a portion of the Quindaro Site more particularly described on the attached
Exhibit A hereto and depicted on the map attached as Exhibit A-1 hereto, including all right, title
and interest in any rights, hereditaments and benefits appurtenant thereto, including, any easements

Exhibit B - 1
0504745.0031/195929195.12












IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Memorandum as of the
Effective Date.

OWNER:

Unified Government of Kansas City/Wyandotte County, Kansas

By:

Name:

Title:

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF KANSAS)
) ss.
COUNTY OF WYANDOTTE )
On before me, , Notary Public,
personally appeared who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the foregoing instrument in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies), as on behalf of the Unified Government
of Kansas City / Wyandotte County, Kansas.

Witness my hand and official seal

(SEAL) Notary Public

Exhibit B - 4
0504745.0031/195929195 12




DEVELOPER:

[PowerTransitions Operations LLC],
a Delaware limited liability company

By:

Name: Sean T. Long, Sr.

Title: Chief Executive Officer

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On before me, , Notary Public,
personally appeared who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory

evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the foregoing instrument in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies) as of [PowerTransitions Operations LLC], and
that by his/her/their signature(s) on the foregoing instrument the person(s), or the entity upon
behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of Texas that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

Witness my hand and official seal

(SEAL) Notary Public

Exhibit B - 5
0504745.0031/195929195 12




EXHIBIT A TO MEMORANDUM OF OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

[To be attached]

Exhibit B - 6
0304745 0031/195529195.12



EXHIBIT A-1 TO MEMORANDUM OF OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT

MAP OF THE PROPERTY

[To be attached]

Exhibit B - 7
0504745.0031/195929195.12



EXHIBIT A-2 TO MEMORANDUM OF OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT

DESCRIPTION OF THE QUINDARO SITE

[To be attached]

Exhibit B - 8
03504745 0031/195929195 12



EXHIBIT A-3 TO MEMORANDUM OF OPTION PURCHASE AGREEMENT
MAP OF THE QUINDARO SITE

[To be attached]

Exhibit B - 9
0504745 0031/195929195.12






EXHIBIT 1
(to the Notice of Exercise)
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

The land referred to herein below is situated in the City of Kansas City, County of
Wyandotte, State of Kansas, and is described as:

Parcel ID:

Acreage:

Exhibit C - 2
0504745 0031195929195 12



EXHIBIT 2
(to the Notice of Exercise)
DESCRIPTION OF THE EASEMENT PROPERTY

The easement rights on the real property described below situated in the City of
Kansas City, County of Wyandotte, State of Kansas:

Exhibit C - 3
0504745 0031/195929195 12



EXHIBIT D

EXCLUDED ASSETS

1. Two (2) 1.5-million gallon tanks (which are located on the Quindaro Site
outside of the Project Property)

2. Inventory equipment and material — see attached listing

3. Drawings, OEM manuals and reports from the Engineering building

4. Spare parts, machinist tools, general tools and equipment from the
Office/Machinist Building

5. Located near Plant 3 ~ Q2 GSU transformer and Q2 aux transformer,
station batteries battery charger

6. 4,000 gallon fuel tank located near East edge of the Property
7. Pumps and valving equipment from the High Duty Building
8. Drawings and plans from the Chemical Building

Exhibit D- ]
0504745.0031/195929195.12



EXHIBIT E

PROPOSED REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

Set forth below is the Proposed Redevelopment Plan to be implemented by Developer. Finalization
of this Proposed Remediation Plan is subject to completion of Developer's environmenial,
demolition, and remediation diligence, finalization of the scope of work and costs associated with
demolition and remediation contraciors, and negotiation and execution of the Turnkey Remediation

Agreement with Owner.
Concept. -
Proposed Scope of
Work

_ Sommary , , — , ,
Developer intends to undertake the following activities to prepare
the Property for development:

Abatement and demolition of structures necessary to

construct new assets on the Property (“Demolition™),

including:
o abatement and demolition of Plant 2
o abatement and demolition of Plant 3
o demolition of all or a portion of the water treatment

Grading, excavation and other site preparation required to
prepare development sites (“Site Prep”) on the Property.
Remediation of Hazardous Materials encountered during
Site Prep and as otherwise necessary to construct new assets
on the Property and to assure protection of public health and
the environment for the end use of such new assets
(“Remediation” and together with the Demolition and Site
Prep, the “Demolition & Remediation Activities”).
Remediation may include:

o

)

O

plant

Removal and off-site - disposal of Hazardous
Material in soils on the Property

Restricting exposure of property users to soils
contaminated with hazardous materials by capping
or otherwise restricting exposure

Treatment of groundwater beneath the Property for

purposes of mitigating onsite exposure (o
Hazardous Materials, or for purposes of
construction and foundation dewatering and
discharge to surface water

Limiting exposure to Hazardous Materials in soil
vapor, including by installation of vapor barriers in
new assets and/or treatment of soil and groundwater
sources of soil vapor on the Property
Implementation of Environmental Use Controls,
Risk Management Plans, and/or Certificate(s) of
Liability Release (as defined by Kansas statutes and

0504745.00317195929195.12

Exhibit E-1









Summary.

Concept

Owner reserves all rights to (and does not release or indemnify
Developer for) any claims relating to new post-Closing releases by
Developer or its Developer Related Parties that affects Owner’s

property.

Rights to Historical
Insurance Policies

Developer would expect to be able to benefit from Owner’s rights
to coverage under historical commercial liability insurance policies;
however, any coverage obtained would not be included in the
Demolition & Remediation Costs or otherwise reduce the amount
of the Financial Assurance.

Financial Assurance &
Limitation of Liability

Developer intends to (1) place in escrow, obtain a letter of credit,
issue a parental guarantee, or establish other financial assurances
that the parties may agree to, in an amount equal to the Demolition
and Remediation Costs, which may be drawn down (or reduced) by
Developer in an amount to equal to the Demolition and Remediation
Costs as expended, and the escrow would revert to Owner (and any
letter of credit or parental guarantee may be drawn by Owner) in the
event of Developer’s default (the “Financial Assurance™); and (2)
maintain the PLL Policy for the term specified above. establish other
financial assurances the parties may agree upon from time to time.

Developer’s aggregate liability under the Turnkey Remediation
Agreement would be limited to the amount of the Financial
Assurance (as it may be drawn down or reduced as set forth above)
and any unpaid premiums for the PLL Policy for the term specified
above.

0504745.0031/195929195 12

Exhibit E-3



Schedule 9.2

(a) None.
(b) None.
(c) None.
(d) None.
(¢) None.
(f) None.
(g) None.

(h) None.

Schedule 9.2
0504745.0031/195929195 12



b. Approval of the Minutes of
the Work Session of
April 16, 2025



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, APRIL 16, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, April 16, 2025 at 6:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: David Haley, President; Brett Parker, Secretary; Mary Gonzales, Stevie A.
Wakes Sr., and Thomas Groneman. Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; attended via
Zoom.

Also present: Jeremy Ash, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief Counsel,
Andrew Ferris, Chief Financial Officer; Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Leigh
Mulholland, Chief Compliance Officer; Jerin Purtee, Interim Chief Operating Officer; Don
Stahl, Executive Director, Electric Production; Steve Green, Executive Director, Water
Operations; Amber Oetting, Director Communications & Marketing; Becky Aldinger,
Director Purchasing/Supply Chain; and Rick Hardman, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Mr. Haley called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.
Roll call was taken and all Board members were present.

Item #3 —Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda, by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Mr.
Wakes, and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Board Update/GM Update

There were no updates.

Item #5 — PT Yardbirds Presentation

Mr. Sean Long, Mr. Rob Bakondy, and Mr. Patrick Brosnan, with PowerTransitions,
gave the Board a synopsis of their company and reviewed their proposal to acquire and
transform approximately 65 acres of the former Quindaro Power Station. They spoke about the
phases they envisioned in the redevelopment and the benefits this project would mean to the
community. (See the attached PowerPoint.)

Page 1 of 2



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, APRIL 16, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board expressed their excitement for the opportunity ahead and looked forward
to assisting as PowerTransitions shared their presentation with the Unified Government
Board of Commissioners and the community.

Jtem #6 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 6:47 PM, by Mr. Parker,
seconded by Mr. Wakes, and carried.

ATTEST: ; APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2







































c. Approval of the Preliminary
March 2025 Financials




















































































9¢

L 10)
SLLIO] MIpuy

=0

ov'¢ 88t ¥0°€ $Z0Z/PAUIqUIOD) GZOT/MR¥M 0£0T/OMI09[H - 93810A0D
9Tv'886°LY LO1°065°S 8L€°899 V¥ $ A1 - 901A19G 1q9(J [BNUUY WNWIXBIA
S1°¢ 66T €0°¢ 9707/P2UIqUO))  9Z0TZ/MPIBM 6207/01H199]H - 98BI0A0D
8v0°9¢8°1S 8EF 1116 9€0°088 vt $ 199 [B10], - 991AI9G 1G9(] [BNUUY WNWIXEIA]
ZS1181°¢91 P0° 182°LT 801°006°SE1 $ saNuaAY 19N
(0vL°€75722) (L89 1€+ 1€) (£50°260°161) sesuadxy soueuoiuIEl pue FunersdQ
76870L°S8¢E 1€LZ1L°8S 191°266°92¢ $ SONUIAIY

$702 "T€ YoTeN ST0C 1€ TTeN $Z0Z 1€ YoTeN
Buipug sIUON zI  Sulpug SPUON Z1  Sulpug SYUON 7]
pauIquo) 1918 M o11309[

‘sasuadxy sourusjuIRIA puE UonEIad() SSO] “UIR)SAS AJ[I1}] S) JO SINUIASY S} SUBOW  SINUIAIY JON,,

“1911enb
Tepusjeo yons yym uipud porad yuow aAem) oY) 10J WeysAS ANfIiN) OU) JO SaNUSASY JON o3 9Jeno[es o} painbai si samyur) o1qng Jo pieog
a1y ‘aImuspu] JsnI, PAJeISaY PUB PapUSUWY puodS Y} Ul pauljep se samjuepuy jepuewe[ddng Aue pue 91z ‘g J9qUI0a( JO S 9AN0AYD 4107 ‘1
SUN{ JO SB PIYep “9IMUapU] ISTLLY, POYeISay pue papusaty puodas sy Ul pauljep se ‘sarmuapuy [ejusuiojddng sy jo syuswennbai sy 0) uipioooy

$20T YdrepN
popuy YIUON oYL 10,4
Sonthf) o1qnd jo pieog
31} 10 SanULAY 19N JO
UOIIB[NI[B)) JO 9LOIJI1I0))



LT

"sanuaAal Surjelado-uou SNOSUE[JIISIUI JAYI0 PUL SJUSUNSIAUI

U0 sasoqu ‘fesodsip yse ‘[ejual Juswiyoe)je 9jod/10Mm0) ‘S99) JOSUUOISIP/A0dULOD ‘SJUNODSIP PaJIafio] [SOpnjoul JOljo pue awooul jsaeu]  (7)

swooul Sunerado-uou Joyjo pue uopostold any ‘sopioyne orqnd ‘Sunysi AemySiy :sepnjout sofes oyl (1)  :S9ION

‘sanuaAal Areurpioenyxa apnjour jou jeys pue Aorjod aoueinsut ojeridosdde ue Aq paroaos woisAS A1) 9y3 £q paLndul sso]

Kue 03 Joadsas yym pred spaooold opnjout jou J[eyS ULId) Yons Ing ‘speadold puog WO PIALISP pun,] UOIONISUCT) 9y} Ul saruow asotp 3deoxs (y10g ‘ounf pajep

SN, JO 2IMUSPU] 2Y1) UISIdY Paysijqe)so spun, ay) Jo Aue Ul SAIUOW JO JUSWIISSAU] 9} WIOY PIALISp SWOOUI [[B SSpn[oul pue ‘walsks AJjii yons jo sjonpoid

pue $921AI9S JO 9Sh pUB JBS 3] WON PUB WBISAS AN 9} 03 10adsar ynm (1dg oy Aq pasodwir seSietd pue sajer Suipnpoul ‘wajsAg AN ay woy Ndg

2y} Aq PaAIadal SONULASI [[B SIPN]IUI PUB ‘SIMIBYI0 JO WoISAS AN1IM] oY) 01 syusunIopaq Jo siredar ‘s)uawoSie[ua ‘SUOISUAIND Wioly SunNnsal Joylaym Joaor)

ued Joyo 10 19301 Aue J0 waISAS AN 9y Jo [onuod pue uonelado GuswaSeurw oY) WO (I Yl AQ POALISP SNUIASI PUE SWIOIUI {[B UBSWI  SONUIAY,,

(12 SV.1) Jusunsn(pe uonjerj1ouosal (HYg) jusuodwo)) syey ASI1sug 10] paliajop SNUSAIY 4

T68V0L°S8€ [€L°TIL8S 191°266°9T¢
(PrS$8L D) - (PrS68LD)
09€°095p1 078°C15°C 0vS9r0°Tl
0LV 1TT°8¢ 8Y1°86°S TTEELTTE
96TTTILI 96L°061°1 00S‘TE1°91
LIETOOT £55°6€9 #9L°19¢
§6T50T°T1 998°G¢8 68€69¢°11
121°092°6S 78€81+°9 6EL 11881
vE0'6TH IE1 991°TILET 898°91L°LI1T
£85°061°811 000PS1°LT £86°9¢0°16

$T0T "1¢ Yo
3urpuyg SYIUO |
pau1quio))

STOT "T¢ Ydre
3urpug syiuo 71
Jarepm

CZ0C "TE PPTEN
Buipug syiuoN 71
plAiktle|

$

SHONHAHY

[ HqIyxy

SONUDAIY [€10],
s3ujuieq pun,j UONONIISUO) :SSA7]
+dd/190] - ONUAY PaLIdJa(]
9ouenSS| JO 150 puog

() 1930 pue awoou] 1saIa)u]
saxe], JO nary uj juswkeJ

sojes o[esa[oym

(1) sofes 100

Ss[oouos

S9Jes JeLysnpuy

S9[eS Je1oIaWWOo))

So[eS [eUapISaY

sanuaAay AN [BIOL



8¢

‘Ndd su1 Aq pazifeyrdes are yorym ‘jany pue saxe) uipnjour ‘swajr Apedoid yons pue ‘wioisAS A1 sy Jo sentedord Aue jo uonrsodsip
19430 10 UONEN{BADI ‘UOHEOIJISSE[Oa1 JUIWIUOPUBGE 2]es 9Y) WO} SIUSWIINDI 10 0} SjuswaAoidwll 10 SUOISUSIXD ‘SlUaIdRg ‘sjuswdoedar ‘suonippe [endes J0j 10J019y3 opew so3Ieyd 10 ‘S1S00
‘Nde 2yl 10 A1) 94 JO SSIUPAIqIPUI 1910 10 papuoq Jo uoyezinowe 1o fedounid jo justuked oy) 1o sedreyp pue soieyd jsarur ‘so]qiueiul Jo uonezIowe ‘swoayl asuadxs Furumooo Apuanbaijul
10 fensnun Ajjerareltt 10 AIeUIpIORNXa “10J219Y) SAIISII 10 SITIRYO 90U2950]0Sq0 10 uonevardap ‘saxe; Jo nayj wr sjuswAed spnjour Jou op sasuadxs soueusjurely pue uonendQ -sopdound Fununosoe
pajdodoe AjjeIausd yiim 20uepIodde ul sosuadxy soueudluIEly pue Sunered( 2q 0) PaIApISUOd IE YIIYM SIS0 I19J0 Aut pue Iapunaiay a3)sni] oyl Jo osoyy Fuipnpoul ‘Areronpiy Aue jo sasuodxo
pue $39J o ‘sojdiourid Fununodoe pajdedse Ajjerousd sepun waisAg AN sy 03 ajqesoqpe Aadosd wxs oYy 03 ‘meT £q Jo K1) oyl Jo soueuipio £q Jdg 2y Aq pied aq o) pannbal suonedijqo
10 sosuadxa Juonno Aue ‘90lAlss uolsstwsues) pue Jomod paseyoind Jo 1500 ay) S50 [ony ‘saSieyo fejuowuisaod Joyjo (Fossoyl nay ui sjuswded Fuipnioul 10U I0q) SIXL] ‘SIJIAISS [EOIUYID) pUE
SULINSUOD [EUONIPPE JO SO0 3Y) pue sasuadxa pue sa9] A1osiape jeroueury pue Jurjunosoe ‘Fursouidus Jede| ‘swniweid soueinsui ‘sasuadys Juawaiyol pue uoisuad ‘vonezijendsoy ‘Yieay saakojdurs
‘soem pue soLre[es ‘sjuawaoejdal pue sjemoual ‘siredar Areuipio Jo $1500 oY) Jo justiked sy oy Aresseoau Lsuow [fe Fuipnjoul ‘parmnbal Kpjeipaw sy JoU St yoiym Jo justwked oy ‘swan yons

10J opise 135 9q 0} pasnbal A[qeuoseal Louotu Jo syunowe ‘o) parswi] Jou Ing “Fuipnjour ‘wisisAg A ays deledo pue ureuIEW 0) A1ESSIISU SPUNY AU SuBdW  SasuadxT eourULUIR)y pue uoneadQ),,

"SpuOg] anuoAay Fuipue)sino uo asuadxs JSa103Ul SIPNJOXT 4

ovL€TSTeT L8OTEVIE €50°260°161 $ sasuadxg doueuautel 9 SunesedQ
(oLt 122'8¢%) (8¥1°816°S) (zzeeLe'ze) SoXe[ JO NI U] JudWAe 1§59
(0£L°509PP) (1¥5v8€°8) (681°122°9¢€) uonezRIoWY puy uonerodldoq :sso]
0P6°0S £°50€ 9LEVIL S ¥95°985°65T $ sSosuadxy BuneradQ
; $20C 1€ JOTE SZ0C ‘1€ Yo SZ0Z 1€ BN
“ Buipug syuoW | Buipug syjuo 71 Buipug SyuoN 7]
. ﬁu:_a__.cou .SEB om.:oo_m

SHSNHIXH HONVNHINIVIN ANV SNOILVIHdO

¢ NQIyxyq




67

£00-00T-20 Ad1]0d dUl[apIng [eidueuly ndg ayl Ui paysijqelsa Se Spunj aAlasal ay) puny Ajjny 03 Papasu Junowe 3y SUasaldal aouejeq ysed PaldMIsalun ayy

(9TH'819°2) S {vov'es6'T) S {z56'v99's) S SJUBWISIAU| PUB YSBD PIIDUISIIUN
869°C0LETT S 206°152°42 S 96L°05t°98 S SUOIILIISY [ej0)
000'002 000°06 000011 pund juawdo|aaaq d1uiouody
8S8°CT0LE LA 74N | Y6£'886°VE JusWalINbay 3AIasaY Butiesad( Suiuteway
998°096'CT 998°096°Z1 - JUBIAOIBADQ WIISAS
000'v0T’S 000°6£9 000'5Z¥'p ¥Z0g 40j 8AIDS3Y UONINIISUOD Butodug
000°005°T 000°0ST 000°05€°T pund Asuagsaw3 pue juswanoiduy
€L7'95ST'6 - €LT'9ST6 pun4 uonezijiqeis aey
000'0629 0000629 - pun4 uoi}anpay 193Q
EEV'SC0’EL 85¥'89€°E S S.6°959'6T punj a2iA195 19aQ
000°000'6 000°0006 31953y DY3
000'00T'T 000022 000088 dwo) SI3JOM- 3AI3STY BDURINSU] JI3S
000°000'T 000002 000008 AIjIger 21jqnd - 9A1953Y d3UBRINSUY J|35
897'ESE"L $ $IT'692'T $ tST'v80°9 $ Jsodaq Jawoisn)

SJUDWIIS3AU] pUB YSeD) JO SUoildLISay

78T'¥80'90T S FRR AT $ vv8°582°08 S ST/TE/E JO S SJUBLIISIAU] pUe yse)
(£8T'TZO9€T) (e¥9'TES2T) (svs‘egv'eeT) 9)e(Q 0) 4BIA SIusWAed ysed
060°LL6'SET 9EE‘TLE'ET SS2'v09°7ZT 2)e(Q 0) JedA s51d1d03Y Ysed
6L£'8ZT'90T S SYL'LSY'vT S v€9'0£9'18 S SZ/10/10J0 sy Sjuawisaaut pue ysed Sujuuidag
PaUguiod TSIeMm RIZECTF]
SZ0Z 1€ UoiEN S20Z 1€ YIEN SZ0Z TE DI

SLNIWLSIANI ANV HSYD
SALLITILN J1T9Nd 40 @YVYO09 ALID SYSNYH






